
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, October 5, 2022

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

22-1235 Common Council Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2022

 

CC Minutes 9-21-22.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

22-1232 Proclamations

  - Indigenous Peoples' Day

  - Coming Out Day

  - White Cane Awareness Day

  - Fire Prevention Week

  - Domestic Violence Awareness Month

  - Mental Health Day

 

Indigenous Peoples' Day Proclamation.pdf

Coming Out Day Proclamation.pdf

White Cane Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

Fire Prevention Week Proclamation.pdf

Domestic Violence Awareness Month.pdf

Mental Health Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

22-1233 2023 Executive Budget & Service Plan Presentation 

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21784
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33f11264-2e02-4607-8cf9-58cb59239fdc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21781
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=15c43c6b-faa3-44dc-8b0e-ed45bbdb3ca4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5c7c5d29-7dd7-43f5-aaad-e690dcd975a9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=21c0fa75-2999-43e8-8231-a2b09c562652.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=412efaa4-cdf3-4058-a412-c389491a0dcf.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=91b724cd-73a7-42ab-944b-38aba2f41d16.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4dc6cb45-9325-49b5-9f5a-dcfb4c3c7c1e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21782


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

22-1147 Request from Mark Van Grinsven, 1610 W. Glendale Avenue, for a 

variance to Municipal Code Section 19-91(f) for a driveway widened more 

than 4 feet into the front yard.

 

Driveway X.jpg

Driveway Extension.pdf

9-21 Van Grinsven Letter & Photos re driveway req.pdf

9-21 Taggart letter re Van Grinsven driveway req.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/12/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for denial

9/21/22 Common Council referred to the Municipal Services Committee

9/26/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1208 Award the 2022-2027 Sidewalk & Crosswalk Snow Removal Services 

Contract to Complete Flatwork Specialists in accordance with the hourly 

rates included in their proposal dated September 9, 2022. The term of this 

contract will be from October 2022 through June of 2027, conditioned upon 

satisfactory performance by the contractor. 

 

2022-2027 College Ave SIdewalk & Crosswalk Snow Services.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21696
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee43051f-e6c6-4684-aabe-e4adfb653bab.jpg
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8ab931cd-56c0-42c3-8a77-e79756a77c06.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3478b84a-2769-4178-a421-9f1dffe6fdf4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e7a32e2a-34f9-4e6d-badb-a4ce55d4d0be.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21757
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47b5fdb5-fa1a-4cd0-83ec-476dc307c64b.pdf


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1209 Approve the proposed handicap-accessible parking stall on the 100 block 

of S. Locust Street.

 

Handicap parking-100 block Locust St.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

22-1138 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License Permanent Premise 

Amendment application for Ultimate Mart LLC d/b/a Pick N Save #8187, 

Lyndsey Lawrence, Agent, located at 511 W Calumet St.

Pick N Save 8187.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1176 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Bowlero 

Wisconsin LLC d/b/a Super Bowl Family Entertainment, Scott M Radtke, 

Agent, located at 2222 E Northland Ave, contingent upon approval from the 

Health department.

Super Bowl.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1206 Secondhand Article Dealer License application for Checkpoint Gaming, 

Dean J Farley, applicant, located at 609A W College Ave.

Checkpoint Gaming S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1212 Resolution #11-R-22, Resolution in Support of Election Officials

 

#11-R-22 Resolution in Support of Election Officials.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Janice Quinlan of the League of Women Voters, 322 South Court spoke 

regarding this item.

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21758
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=482024a7-96fd-43c6-97af-be05c3bf4ab0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21687
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=54bd76cf-c6a5-4be9-ac97-083f187a1eb7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21725
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=21a99c10-b3a3-4fbb-908e-7bbf3fd2030c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21755
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bc098977-238e-4e72-a6c9-7d0bc234f688.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21761
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=740ae2b7-06f5-4122-b620-e83d6ee31e01.pdf


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1224 Request to Approve FEMA's Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for a 

Regional Radio Project.

 

09-22-22_AFG_County_Radio_Grant.pdf

EMW-2021-FG-01241 - Regional Radio Grant - Budget Amendment - 09.22.2022.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1225 Request to Accept Emergency Medical Service (EMS) FLEX Grant.

 

09-22-22_EMS_Flex_Grant_Memo.pdf

State of Wisconsin Health Services - EMS Flex Grant - Budget Amendment - 09.22.2022.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

22-1195 Request to approve Certified Survey Map #25-22, which crosses a plat 

boundary, for the F Street Phase III development located in Southpoint 

Commerce Park, west of S. Eisenhower Drive and south of E. Milis Drive 

(Tax Id #31-9-5714-00, 31-9-5714-01, 31-9-5714-02, 31-9-5712-30, 

31-9-5712-31, 31-9-5712-32, and 31-9-5712-33) as shown on the 

attached map and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_F Street Phase III_CrossingPlatBoundary_For09-28-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

22-1214 Request to award the 2022 Lake Station Gate Improvements Project contract to 

Milbach Construction Services Co. in the amount of $72,000 with a 10% 

contingency of $7200 for a project total not to exceed $79,200.

2022 Lake Station Gate Replacement Project.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-1217 Request to deny all bids for the Appleton Public Library project received on 

September 20, 2022. 

2022 Library Bids - Rejected.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21773
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a49a1e8b-b4d0-49d0-b43b-b56f855b6ad5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89d3c590-cfc4-42ee-b06f-2bac96157c5d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21774
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4639727b-0f4e-4226-87e4-4ab624888e77.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c193477-ba2d-4adf-8530-d48defdf1047.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21744
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=89a47b69-0287-4832-814a-043fb33c8a94.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21763
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9da9028-6690-481d-9282-31f25cfa0604.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21766
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a5ffdd0e-6072-47f2-8049-110153ad9dd7.pdf


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1218 Request to approve Contract Amendment / Change Order No.4 to contract 

133-21, Unit U-21 Apple Creek Ct & Plamann Park S&W Construction for 

additional measured quantities of water main/service quantities installed in the 

amount of $23,105.22 resulting in a decrease in contingency from $39,730 to 

$0. Overall contract amount decreases from $4,063,474.01 to $4,046,849.23. 

Unit U-21 Change Order No. 4.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-1229 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendment:

General Fund - Fire

Misc State Aids                                  +$51,270

Misc Equipment                                 +$51,270

to record Emergency Medical Service (EMS) FLEX Grant funds from the State 

of Wisconsin and the related expenditures (2/3 vote of Council required)

09-22-22_EMS_Flex_Grant_Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-1230 Request to accept FEMA’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for a regional 

radio project and approve the related 2022 Budget amendment as follows:

Public Safety Capital Projects Fund

Federal Grants                                  +$1,807,912

Machinery & Equipment                    +$1,807,912

to record AFG grant funds and the related expenditures (2/3 vote of Council 

required)

09-22-22_AFG_County_Radio_Grant.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/26/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

22-1193 Request to approve Resolution #2022-07 to authorize the submittal of a 

Community Development Investment (CDI) grant application on behalf of 

Urbane 115 LLC to Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation 

(WEDC) in an amount not to exceed $250,000 for the redevelopment 

located at 115 E. Washington Street and the City accept the grant funds 

should they be awarded

WEDC_CDI Grant_Urbane 115 LLC_Memo to CEDC 9-28-22.pdf

Resolution #2022-07 WEDC_CDI Grant_Urbane 115 LLC.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21767
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dda12cfe-ee81-4e9e-8681-cb83638fcf00.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21778
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7272f559-6527-4151-b6e7-aa524aa05d15.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21779
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d0d860cc-a6a6-4c23-b75b-7dbcd3e54525.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21742
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a926d090-c3dc-4d33-9ecc-cb36249a27ad.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=edf1d506-4e0c-4361-a267-5dc3fe4953b4.pdf


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

9/28/22 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

22-1226 Request to approve the First Amendment to the Development Agreement 

with MF Housing Partners, LLC for redevelopment located on N. Oneida 

Street, E. Harris Street, and N. Appleton Street (Parcel Nos. 

31-2-0441-00, 31-2-0443-00, 31-2-0437-00, and 31-2-0529-00) in Tax 

Increment Financing District No. 11

Rise Apts DA 1st Amendment Memo to CEDC 9-28-22.pdf

0718 - Rise Apartments - First Amendment to Dev Agrm - 09-23-2022 (clean).pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/28/22 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

22-1198 Authorization to Award Scheduling and Planning Software Contract to 

Optibus Inc.

Award Recommendation Optibus.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/27/22 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21775
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=938171c4-48d4-49d4-aa09-46f19b2c1293.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=01e948fe-96ff-4db9-a092-11d47a1869f0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21747
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c84e8d7-2657-4e89-bd2e-4776d95f9552.pdf


October 5, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

S. CLOSED SESSION

T. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 9/30/2022



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, September 21, 2022

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Mayor Woodford.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Meltzer.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 15 - 

Alderperson Vaya JonesExcused: 1 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

22-1158 Common Council Meeting Minutes of September 7, 2022

 

CC Minutes 9-7-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21707
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c0604b7a-34e8-4634-94fb-27bbd718c073.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

22-1183 Appleton City Planning Centennial Month Proclamation

Appleton City Planning Centennial Month Proclamation.pdfAttachments:

This Proclamation was presented

22-1184 Committee Appointments 

 

Committee Appointment Memo 9'15'2022.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Schultz, that the 

Committee Appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Items 22-1121 & 22-1122 CDGB Plan & Pillars MOU:

Lisa Strandberg, representing Pillars- 605 E Hancock St.

The following spoke regarding Item 22-1147 Driveway Extension Request:

Matthew Van Grinsven, 1610 W Glendale Ave

Kayla Taggart, 1610 W Glendale Ave

The following spoke regarding Item 22-1144 Process Map for Trout Museum locating in 

Ellen Kort Peace Park:

Ronna Swift, 230 W Seymour St

Elisa DeGroot, 335 W Prospect Ave

Gwen Sargeant, 2401 W Cherokee Dr

Kerry Williamsen, 209 N Mason St

Sarah Boge, 39 Bellaire Ct

Bernard Edmonds, 39 Bellaire Ct

Adam Tieck, 415 S Olde Oneida St. 337

Christina Turner, 111 W College Ave

Clint Drisenberry, 111 W College Ave

John Miller, 315 W Franklin St

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21732
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=91a731d2-f868-43da-9e11-757cc931db2e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21733
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=95764696-ab5e-4132-b0f5-504eee4f4afa.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

22-1101 Public Hearing for Rezoning #4-22 at 1430 N. Ballard Road from M-2 

General Industrial District to C-2 General Commercial District.

 

RZ #4_22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

The Public Hearing was held, no one spoke during the hearing.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

22-1147 Request from Mark Van Grinsven, 1610 W. Glendale Avenue, for a 

variance to Municipal Code Section 19-91(f) for a driveway widened 

more than 4 feet into the front yard.

 

Driveway X.jpg

Driveway Extension.pdf

9-21 Van Grinsven Letter & Photos re driveway req.pdf

9-21 Taggart letter re Van Grinsven driveway req.pdf

Attachments:

This Request was referred to the Municipal Services Committee by Alderperson 

Schultz, due back on 9/26/2022.

22-1121 Request to approve Fourth Substantial Amendment to the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2020 Annual Action Plan (AAP) 

awarding $287,607 of CDBG Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 

Security (CARES Act) funding to community partner organizations as 

specified in the attached documents

2020 AAP Fourth Substantial Amendment Memo to CEDC 

9-14-22.pdf

Appleton 2020 CDBG CV3 Award Letter.pdf

2020 AAP Fourth Substantial Amendment Draft 8-15-22.pdf

0652 - MOU - City and Pillars - REVISED-CLEAN 09-02-2022.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the CDBG 

amendment be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21650
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aefc797c-3bbb-42db-b46a-21806fdfa84a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21696
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee43051f-e6c6-4684-aabe-e4adfb653bab.jpg
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8ab931cd-56c0-42c3-8a77-e79756a77c06.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3478b84a-2769-4178-a421-9f1dffe6fdf4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e7a32e2a-34f9-4e6d-badb-a4ce55d4d0be.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21670
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=59afda16-a01c-467d-8d1f-1abc53830b11.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d17286cb-2e40-48dd-a209-75a5081bf8f0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f764ee58-b391-41f6-9618-3935f712df95.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8b550b59-4096-435e-b9b7-f57df229608a.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1122 Request to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with Pillars, Inc. 

as specified in the attached documents (Associated with Action Item 

#22-1121)

2020 AAP Fourth Substantial Amendment Memo to CEDC 

9-14-22.pdf

Appleton 2020 CDBG CV3 Award Letter.pdf

2020 AAP Fourth Substantial Amendment Draft 8-15-22.pdf

0652 - MOU - City and Pillars - REVISED-CLEAN 09-02-2022.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the MOU 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-1144 Action Item:  Approve Process Map for Ellen Kort Peace Park Proposal 

by the Trout Museum Requesting to Co-Locate a New Museum in the 

Park

 

2022 Ellen Kort Park Process Memo.docx

Ellen Kort Process Map.docx

Updated Process Map 8-17-22f.docx

Attachments:

Alderperson Alfheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the Process 

Map be amended to add step 3.25, asking for a 'go' or 'no' vote prior to step 3.5, 

Trout Presentation. Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim

3 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21671
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dd573dc6-a0d4-4b2a-b0eb-b5d90648d382.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d5f3c64-94f2-47a9-94bb-a22410788ff5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=72fc0338-a853-4f7e-a21b-27faeb66d763.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53ffb98d-1e87-402d-bc6f-6f1143493ccd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21693
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=506bc2eb-de8f-4082-9cc5-af130bb16a5b.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d19a343-2d66-4927-bdf7-7348eb589fa9.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=236d55e7-b825-4eed-9285-a3946de84ee2.docx


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson 

Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua 

Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt 

and Alderperson Chad Doran

11 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the 

Process Map be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson 

Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

10 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao

4 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Croatt moved, Alderperson Van Zeeland seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

22-1148 Approve modifications to the City of Appleton Downtown Parking Policy 

for City Employees and Map. 

 

Downtown Parking Policy for City Employees-9-22 draft for 

approval.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21697
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b71e2d6b-a88f-452b-9237-ba41ebf94f92.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1160 Request from Kush Kafe' for a Street Occupancy Permit to place tables 

and chairs in the beautification strip at 219 E College Avenue.

 

Kash Cafe'.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

22-0350 Request to approve the Stone Ridge Estates West Final Plat as shown 

on the attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report

StaffReport_StoneRidgeEstatesWest_FinalPlat_For09-14-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1060 Request to approve Rezoning #4-22 for the subject parcel located at 

1430 N. Ballard Road (Tax Id #31-1-5207-00), including to the centerline 

of the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of N. Ballard Road, as shown 

on the attached maps, from M-2 General Industrial District to C-2 General 

Commercial District

StaffReport_EPS_Rezoning_For08-24-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1130 Request to approve Special Use Permit #10-22 for a craft-distillery with a 

tasting room and an outdoor patio with alcohol sales and consumption 

use located at 516 W. Lawrence Street (Tax Id #31-3-1006-00), as 

shown on the attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to 

run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and 

approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for 

approval)

StaffReport_516WLawrenceSt_SUP_For09-14-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21709
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=180a49fe-56ad-46a2-82e2-edc3f769b33b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20900
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=41ecd1bc-1969-45ee-84c9-211a2a9b3194.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21610
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7dbc2f7b-44d3-45bf-9317-c8e499c12cd4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21679
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f5648e10-ca96-474c-8871-52195ce1e84d.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1151 Action:  Suspend Planning and Design of the WE Energies Trail - Phase 

One and Cancel Acceptance of the Department of Transportation TAP 

Grant

 

WE Energies Trail Phase One Memo_.docxAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

22-1155 Request to award the Aeration Tank #1 Repairs contract to Staab 

Construction Corporation in the amount of $237,000 with a 5% 

contingency of $11,850 for a project total not to exceed $248,850.

 

Award Aeration Tank #1.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

22-1118 Request to approve City Program Funding for 2023 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding as specified in the attached 

document

City Proposals Memo to CEDC 9-14-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

22-1136 Approve 2021 Sludge Storage Addition Project Engineering Services 

Amendment #1 increasing the Applied Technologies, Inc. total contract 

amount by $30,038 from $499,301 to $529,339 and decrease 

unallocated contingency from $74,895 to $44,857.

 

220825_UC Memo_SSB AdditionProfessionalServices_ATI_Contract 

Amend No.1.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21700
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8b30892c-934c-4c6a-a9f4-253692dd144e.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21704
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc3055e8-1e3a-4b95-bf61-b34c407c79ab.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21667
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ab6b04ce-9958-448b-968a-6bdf858d3cfa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21685
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=597d9c28-06ef-487c-9994-98271f727a14.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1137 Approval of a Coating Services Contract for the DAF and Receiving 

Station Tanks to Badger Specialties Coatings in the amount of $59,000 

with a contingency of $5,900 for a total not to exceed cost of $64,900.

 

utilities memo DAF and RS Tank Coatings Award 08-29-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

22-1135 Request to over hire the Administrative Services Coordinator in the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department. 

 

2022 Administrative Coordinator Overhire (1).pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-1149 Request to Reclassify Facilities Support Specialist to Assistant Facilities 

Manager and Administrative Assistant to Marketing and Community 

Engagement Coordinator. 

 

2022 Reorganization of Parks Recreation and Facilities Management 

(3).pdf

Assistant Facilities Manager - DG.pdf

MCEC.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

22-1159 Ordinances #55-22 and #56-22

Ordinances to Council 9-21-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

Ordinances be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21686
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cf65609d-a808-4722-b397-70dfaf20a12e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21684
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec979b4a-45bc-4814-85e1-2b9bc29def45.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21698
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1716984c-c7ff-4ab7-b988-d8b7c7406b3b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=59d0cb0c-9295-46b9-9ef3-30c0d92b4062.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40bdc9b6-1bd2-435f-9df2-acd4dc596c9d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21708
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a0784719-acd1-478e-9d92-ec4fb071c6d6.pdf


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

22-1212 Resolution #11-R-22, Resolution in Support of Election Officials

 

#11-R-22 Resolution in Support of Election Officials.pdfAttachments:

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

22-1182 Request to Reconsider Finance Committee Item 22-1083:

Request to Award the ARPA Grant Administration contract to Booth 

Management Consulting, LLC for a project total not to exceed 

$150,000
 

Alderperson Alfheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

Reconsideration Request be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson 

Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

10 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Israel 

Del Toro and Alderperson Kristin Alfheim

4 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21761
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=740ae2b7-06f5-4122-b620-e83d6ee31e01.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21731


September 21, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-1083 Request to award the ARPA Grant Administration contract to Booth 

Management Consulting, LLC for a project total not to exceed $150,000

 

ARPA Grant Administration.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Van Zeeland moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

ARPA Grant Administration Contract be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim and 

Alderperson Nate Wolff

11 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

3 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 8:15 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vaya Jones1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21633
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=806a058a-34af-471f-95d6-404ec1a5dd21.pdf
















09/05/2022 

 

 

Mr. Craanen, 

 

This in in reference to a driveway extension at my residence at 1610 W. Glendale Ave. in 
Appleton. We have a total of 5 adults, consisting of my 2 adult children, Marcus and 
Matt, Matt’s significant other Kayla, my wife Jean and I. We all drive on a regular basis 
and need to have 5 vehicles. We currently have room for 2 vehicles in the garage, and 2 
more vehicles in the driveway. The fifth vehicle is being parked in the apron between 
the main sidewalk and the street. This is not ideal, even in the best of conditions. Winter 
is soon approaching, leaving the vehicle parked in the apron buried in snow and in a 
position to be damaged by the plow or the snow and ice as it gets packed in.  

 

The best solution is to extend the driveway to the side and make room for the fifth 
vehicle. As per the accompanying drawing, I would like to extend the driveway 12 feet 
to the north on Douglas Street into my side yard. However, I am being told by the city 
that I would have to extend to the south, which my front yard. 

 

Your assistance is greatly appreciated in receiving a variance and or whatever is needed 
to get the proper permit(s) needed to have my driveway extended for use before 
winter. 

 

Thank you! 

Mark Van Grinsven 

1610 W. Glendale Ave. 

Appleton WI. 54914 

920-733-4738 

mvangr@yahoo.com 

 

CC: Nate Wolf, Matt Van Grinsven, Mark Van Grinsven 

mailto:mvangr@yahoo.com






































Outagamie







Resolution #11-R-22 
Resolution in Support of Election Officials 

Date: September 21, 2022 
Submitted by: Fenton – District 6, Meltzer – District 2, Schultz – District 9  
Referred to: Safety & Licensing Committee 
 
Summary: A resolution in support of the City Clerk and staff and citizen election inspectors to 
administer free and fair elections. 
 
WHEREAS, the survival of our democracy depends on free and fair elections, where all eligible 
voters have the opportunity to make their voices heard; and 
 
WHEREAS, we believe our community has been well-served by the current system of 
nonpartisan election administration governed by a bi-partisan commission, managed by our 
City Clerk, and administered by our friends and neighbors who serve as election inspectors who 
also publicly canvass the election results and report the results to the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, these same election officials played a critical role in making the 2020 election safe, 
secure, and accessible during the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, over the past year, some in our society have attempted to bully, threaten, and 
undermine election administrators, making it harder for election officials to do their jobs, which 
reduces faith in the electoral process and hurts the health of our democracy; and 
 
WHEREAS, looking forward to the 2022 election and beyond, we reaffirm our conviction that 
nonpartisan election officials like our City Clerk and local election inspectors are best equipped 
to preside over free and fair elections, and should do so without the fear of threats and 
intimidation; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Common Council strongly opposes any future attempts to seize power over 
elections from municipal clerks to grant it to any partisan entity; and 
 
WHEREAS, as long as our non-partisan election administrators continue to administer our 
elections with accessibility, fairness, equality, safety, and security in mind, we are fully 
committed to standing behind them in the face of unfounded attacks.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Appleton expresses 
full confidence in our City Clerk, citizen election inspectors, and Wisconsin’s system of 
bipartisan election administration. 
 



AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that we support our friends and neighbors who serve as election 
inspectors and local election officials, including our City Clerk and city staff. 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

September 22, 2022 

To: Finance Committee, Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Request to Accept FEMA’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for a Regional Radio Project 

 

 
The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting approval to accept a 2021 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) in 
the amount of $1,807,911.80. 
 
Since 2001, AFG has helped firefighters and other first responders obtain critically needed resources necessary for 
protecting the public and emergency personnel from fire and related hazards. The AFG supports training emergency 
personnel, enhancing efficiencies, and supporting community resilience. This grant opportunity places a high priority on 
equipment interoperability between neighboring departments.  The portable radios currently utilized in the region will 
no longer be manufactured.  This includes all associated equipment of that portable radio such as collar microphones, 
batteries, and parts. 
 
AFD is the host agency in the regional effort to replace portable radios.  The following Fire/EMS departments are 
included in the grant:  Little Chute, Town of Vandenbroek/Kaukauna, City of Kaukauna, Freedom, Kimberly, Ellington, 
Seymour City, Rural, and Rescue, Buchanan, Dale, Bear Creek, Combined Locks, Greenville, Appleton Airport, 
Hortonville/Hortonia, and Grand Chute.   
 
A total grant request of $4,315,312.30 was submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  FEMA 
reduced the award to approximately 42% of the original ask, or $1,807,911.80.  We are in the process of assessing the 
impact the reduction will have on all agencies.  Based on the radio project estimated for the AFD of $532,643.15, the 
City of Appleton could expect to incur a capital expense of approximately $315,000.00 in fiscal year 2023. 
 
Local matching funds are determined by population.  The City of Appleton’s local match is 10%, while the remaining 
participating fire department will have a 5% match.  Due to the reduction in the original grant request, all agencies will 
exceed the local match requirements of the grant. 
 
Unfortunately, batteries, collar microphones, and associated portable equipment will no longer be made by Motorola 
for Factory Mutual (FM) certified portable radios leaving us with our only affordable choice, to purchase non-intrinsically 
safe portable radio components.  The purchase of non-intrinsically safe portable radios and components puts 
responders at risk in flammable/combustible environments.  The Appleton Fire Department initiated working with 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Outagamie County to approach this problem regionally, as many of the responding agencies in Outagamie County 
currently have FM certified portable radios and need to change over to Underwriter’s Laboratory (UL) certified portable 
radios.  The physical impact of such a change puts the regional responders at risk of being stuck with improper, unsafe 
equipment that is used for communication in hazardous and deadly environments.  The primary benefit of this project is 
the regional community will receive updated portable radios that maintain operability throughout the county and 
region.  Having an assigned radio dedicated to a particular riding position not only is a cost-effective way to immediately 
enhance operational safety, but it is also recommended by several industry standards as laid out by OSHA, NIOSH, NFPA, 
IAFCA, and IAFF.   

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 





 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

September 22, 2022 

To: Finance Committee, Safety & Licensing Committee, and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Chief 
Doug Vrechek, Battalion Chief of Resource Development & Special Operations 
 

Re: Request to Accept Emergency Medical Service (EMS) FLEX Grant 

 

 
Across the State of Wisconsin, the Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Flex Grant will provide $32 million to stabilize EMS 
providers and to ensure they can continue to respond to emergencies across Wisconsin.  EMS providers in Wisconsin 
have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic by greater demand for EMS services, increased costs associated with 
providing those services, and limitations on public funding for those services created by the economic consequences of 
the pandemic. Therefore, all EMS services licensed in the State of Wisconsin were eligible to request funding in this 
grant process. 
 
In 2021, the AFD responded to 6,841 calls for service with a total of 5,180 that were for medical emergencies.  EMS 
response accounts for 76% of the fire department’s calls for service.  The Fire Department requested EMS Flex Grant 
funding to meet a variety of our medical incident response needs totaling $94,100.   The actual award was reduced to 
$51,270.   
 
Therefore, the Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting approval to accept the State of Wisconsin, Department of 
Health Services, EMS Flex Grant in the amount of $51,270. 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org




 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owners:  F Street Appleton 3, LLC c/o Josh Lurie 

 

Applicant:  Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. c/o Colin Meisel, PE 

 

Address/Parcel:  3351 S. Eisenhower Drive, 3725 E. Milis Drive and E. Milis Drive (Tax Id #’s 31-9-

5714-00, 31-9-5714-01, 31-9-5714-02, 31-9-5712-33, 31-9-5712-32, 31-9-5712-31, 31-9-5712-30) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting approval of a 4-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) that 

crosses a plat boundary.  

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

Typically, CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City staff.  However, the subject 

properties were originally platted in different plats.  Parcel #’s 31-9-5712-33, 31-9-5712-32, 31-9-5712-

31 and 31-9-5712-30 were included in the Southpoint Commerce Park Plat No. 3 and parcels #’s 31-9-

5714-00, 31-9-5714-01 and 31-9-5714-02 were included in Certified Survey Map #3978.  In order to 

satisfy the requirements of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the proposed CSM must be 

approved in the same manner as a Final Plat, which includes Plan Commission and Common Council 

approval. 

 

This CSM will re-configure/combine the five existing western parcels (Parcel #’s 31-9-5714-00, 31-9-

5712-33, 31-9-5712-32, 31-9-5712-31 and 31-9-5712-30) into two parcels, proposed Lots 1 and 2.  

Proposed Lots 3 and 4 (Parcel #’s 31-9-5714-02 and 31-9-5714-01) are not changing with the CSM, aside 

from new lot numbers.  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Conditions:  Proposed Lots 1 and 2 are currently undeveloped.  A Site Plan application (Site 

Plan #27-22) is currently under review for the construction of an industrial building and associated 

loading area and off-street parking lot on Proposed Lot 2.  A recently approved (Site Plan #07-22) 

industrial building is currently under construction on proposed Lot 3 (Parcel #31-9-5714-02).  Lot 4 

contains an existing industrial building with associated loading area and off-street parking lot (Parcel #31-

5714-01).  All parcels have a zoning designation of M-1 Industrial Park District.  The total land area 

included in the CSM is approximately 49.92 acres. 

 

Subdivision Ordinance Requirements:  Per Section 17-26(b)(1) of the Municipal Code, widths and 

areas of lots shall not be less than that provided in the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  For the M-1 Industrial 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  September 28, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  October 5, 2022 

 

Item:  Certified Survey Map #25-22 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic 

Development 

 



Certified Survey Map #25-22 

September 28, 2022 

Page 2 
 

Park District, the minimum lot width is 150 feet and the minimum lot area is 43,560 square feet, per 

Section 23-131(h) of the Municipal Code.  Proposed lots satisfy these lot development standards. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, east and west) and the Village of Harrison (south).  The uses are generally industrial and 

agricultural in nature. 

 

North:  M-1 Industrial Park District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently undeveloped 

industrial park land/agriculture crops and an industrial business.  

 

South:  Village of Harrison.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently undeveloped land and 

agriculture crops. 

 

East:  M-1 Industrial Park District.  The adjacent land use to the east is currently undeveloped land. 

 

West:  M-1 Industrial Park District.  The adjacent land uses to the west is currently undeveloped industrial 

park land/agriculture crops. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community & Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Business/Industrial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the September 20, 2022 TRG agenda.  

Comments were received from participating departments and captured in the stipulations found below. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based on the above, staff recommends that Certified Survey Map #25-22, as shown on the attached map, 

BE APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Provide the impervious/pervious surface lot coverage for each lot. Please use the proposed lot 

coverage for Lot 2. 

2. List the r/w width for Alliance Drive. 

3. Show the historic Lots 30-33 on detail sheet #2. 

4. Show the 15’ x 20’ drainage and storm easement on Lots 32 and 33. 

5. The easement over Lots 30-33 that fronts on Quest and Milis Drive is not a 10’ drainage easement 

it is a 12’ utility easement, revise as necessary. 

6. Provide the recording document number and the North/South distance for the existing access and 

utility easement along the common lot line for proposed Lot 3 and 4 of the C.S.M. 

7. Remove the word dedicated from the mortgagee certificate or identify what is being dedicated. 

8. Add the restricted access note that is shown on Sheet 1 to sheet 2 and 3. 

9. The Drainage Plan requirement for this CSM is waived. 

10. The following access restriction language shall be added to the CSM Document: 



Certified Survey Map #25-22 

September 28, 2022 

Page 3 
 

AS OWNER, F STREET APPLETON 3 LLC HEREBY RESTRICTS LOT 1 IN THAT NO OWNER, POSSESSOR, USER, 

LICENSEE, NOR OTHER PERSON SHALL HAVE ANY RIGHT OF DIRECT VEHICULAR INGRESS OR EGRESS WITH 

QUEST DRIVE FROM THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LIMIT OF MIDWAY ROAD (C.T.H.”AP”) TO A POINT 200 

FEET NORTH; IT IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED THAT THIS RESTRICTION CONSTITUTES A RESTRICTION FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 236.293, WISCONSIN STATUTES AND SHALL BE 

ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF APPLETON OR ITS ASSIGNS. 

AS OWNER, F STREET APPLETON 1 LLC HEREBY RESTRICTS LOT 4 IN THAT NO OWNER, POSSESSOR, USER, 

LICENSEE, NOR OTHER PERSON SHALL HAVE ANY RIGHT OF DIRECT VEHICULAR INGRESS OR EGRESS WITH 

EISENHOWER DRIVE FROM THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LIMIT OF MIDWAY ROAD (C.T.H.”AP”) TO A POINT 

800 FEET NORTH; IT IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED THAT THIS RESTRICTION CONSTITUTES A RESTRICTION FOR 

THE BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 236.293, WISCONSIN STATUTES AND SHALL BE 

ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF APPLETON OR ITS ASSIGNS. 

AS OWNERS,  F STREET APPLETON 1 LLC, F STREET APPLETON 2 LLC, AND F STREET APPLETON 3 LLC 

HEREBY RESTRICT LOTS 1, 2, 3 AND 4 IN THAT NO OWNER, POSSESSOR, USER, LICENSEE, NOR OTHER 

PERSON SHALL HAVE ANY RIGHT OF DIRECT VEHICULAR INGRESS OR EGRESS WITH MIDWAY ROAD 

(C.T.H.”AP”); IT IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED THAT THIS RESTRICTION CONSTITUTES A RESTRICTION FOR THE 

BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 236.293, WISCONSIN STATUTES AND SHALL BE 

ENFORCEABLE BY THE CITY OF APPLETON OR ITS ASSIGNS. 

 

 



9-5712-37

9-5712-29

9-5712-309-5712-319-5712-32

9-5712-33

9-5712-35

9-5712-36

9-5712-26

9-5712-27

9-5712-28

9-5712-34

9-5900

9-5712-16
9-5712-17 9-5712-18

9-5712-20

9-5712-21

9-5712-22

9-5712-23

9-5712-24

0-4166-14

0-4166-15

0-4166-19

9-5713

0-4168-9

0-4168-13

0-4
16

8-
11

0-4
16

8-
12

9-5712-39

9-5712

9-5712-409-5712-19

9-5714
9-5714-1

9-5714-2

32
00

30
50

30
00

29
00

30
01

29
11

28
1228
11

28
19

28
09

28
10

3310

3311

3322

3501 3551 3601

33
00

33
55

33
77

36003500

3701

30
51

31
01

32
01

31
00

33
01

3700
3551

33
51

37253653

E MIDWAY RD

R-1B

E MIDWAY RD

S Q
UE

ST
 D

R

E MILIS DR

EIS
EN

HO
WE

R 
 D

R

E VANTAGE DR

ED
GE

WA
TE

R 
DR

M-1

R-3

AG CT
H 

NHWY 441

CTH KK

MANITOWOC RD
N 

CO
OP

 R
D

S T
EL

UL
AH

 AV
E CALUMET ST

MIDWAY RD

CT
H 

LP

E MIDWAY RD

E PLANK RD

HWY 10

HY
 44

1

HEARTHSTONE DR

CTY TK N

S E
IS

EN
HO

WE
R 

DR

LA
KE

 PA
RK

 R
D

E PLANK RD

F Street Phase III
Certified Survey Map #25-22

Zoning MapSubject
Area

City Plan Commission
9-28-2022

Subject Area

± 0 300 600150 Feet



9-5712-37

9-5712-29

9-5712-309-5712-319-5712-32

9-5712-33

9-5712-35

9-5712-36

9-5712-26

9-5712-27

9-5712-28

9-5712-34

9-5900

9-5712-25

9-5712-16
9-5712-17 9-5712-18

9-5712-20

9-5712-21

9-5712-22

9-5712-23

9-5712-24

9-5712-5

0-4166-12 0-4166-14

0-4166-15

0-4166-19

9-5713

0-4168-9

0-4168-13

0-4168-10

0-4
16

8-
11

0-4
16

8-
12

9-5712-39

9-5712

9-5712-409-5712-19

9-5714
9-5714-1

9-5714-2

27
05 27

00

27002701

32
00

30
50

30
00

29
00

30
01

29
11

28
1228
11

28
19

28
09

28
10

3311

3310

3311

3322

3316

3501 3551 3601

33
00

33
55

33
77

36003500

3701

30
51

31
01

32
01

31
00

33
01

3700
3551

33
51

37253653

E MIDWAY RD

S Q
UE

ST
 D

R

E MILIS DR

EIS
EN

HO
WE

R 
 D

R

E VANTAGE DR

ED
GE

WA
TE

R 
DR

F Street Phase III
Certified Survey Map #25-22

Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
9-28-22

Subject Area

±
0 500

Feet















 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  9/26/2022 

 

RE: Action:  Award the 2022 Lake Station Gate Improvements Project contract to 

Milbach Construction Services Co., in the amount of $72,000 with a contingency 

of 10% for a project total not to exceed $79,200.   

 

 

The 2022 Capital Improvement Plan includes $200,000 to upgrade the front entrance gate at the 

Lake Station. Of that amount $24,850 has been utilized for design, leaving a balance of $175,150 

for construction. This facility’s entrance gate is original to the facility and its mechanicals are at 

the end of their useful life. The needed repairs include opener, card access, and new wiring from 

the facility to the gate.  
    
The bid was received as follows: 

 

Milbach Construction Services Co. (low bid) $72,000 

 

Although only one bid was received, the bid was below the engineer’s cost estimate.  

 

Our consulting engineer has written the City of Appleton a formal letter of recommendation to 

award the contract to Milbach Construction Services Co. The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities 

Management Department has also reviewed the bids and is in agreement with the engineer’s 

recommendation. Therefore, we recommend awarding the contract to Milbach Construction Co. 

in the amount of $72,000 plus a contingency of 10% only to be utilized as needed. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572 FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza, Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

 

DATE:  9/26/2022 

 

RE:  Action Item:  Deny all bids received for the Appleton Public Library project on 

September 20, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

On September 20, 2022, bids were opened for the Appleton Public Library project.  This included a 

total of thirty-eight bid packages.  No bids were received for five of the bid packages.  We are 

requesting all bids be denied. 

 

Many bids far exceeded our estimates, and some were excessively high.  Inflation, supply chains and 

labor shortages are contributing factors to inflated costs and lack of bidding activity.  The project 

team will rebid the project in early 2023. 

 

Please feel free to contact me at 832-5572 with any questions, or by email at 

dean.gazza@appleton.org.   

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


Change Order No. 4

Date 09/20/21

Contract No. 133-21  for the following public work :

between

      and the City of Appleton dated: is hereby changed in the following particular wit:

Current

Item Contract Current C.O. Amount Contingency New Contract New Contingency

No. Account No. Amount Contingency (+/-) (+/-) Total Total

1 5431.690803 $2,860,695.56 $20,845.73 $1,846.29 -$20,845.73 $2,862,541.85 $0.00

2 53206730.680905 $1,161,508.45 $18,044.77 $22,798.93 -$18,044.77 $1,184,307.38 $0.00

3 5230.6809.4 $1,540.00 $839.50 -$1,540.00 -$839.50 $0.00 $0.00

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Total $4,023,744.01 $39,730.00 $23,105.22 -$39,730.00 $4,046,849.23 $0.00

 Reason for Change:

 

The Contract Time will be (increased / decreased / unchanged) by this Change Order: 0 Days

The Date of Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is: 20-Sep-22

Finance Committee Agenda Date: 09/26/22

Date approved by Council: 10/05/22

20-Oct-21

Unit U-21, Apple Creek Ct & Plamann Park S&W Construction

CONTRACT AMENDMENT & CHANGE ORDER

Final as-built quantities slightly higher that plan due to additional water services. 

(Contractor Name) (Contractor Address)

Superior Sewer & Water 1801 Deer Trail Ct,  Luxemburg, WI    54217

C:\Users\buetowrm\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\9FOQUSIS\Unit U-21 Change Order 4.xls 9/22/2022



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

September 22, 2022 

To: Finance Committee, Safety & Licensing Committee, and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Chief 
Doug Vrechek, Battalion Chief of Resource Development & Special Operations 
 

Re: Request to Accept Emergency Medical Service (EMS) FLEX Grant 

 

 
Across the State of Wisconsin, the Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Flex Grant will provide $32 million to stabilize EMS 
providers and to ensure they can continue to respond to emergencies across Wisconsin.  EMS providers in Wisconsin 
have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic by greater demand for EMS services, increased costs associated with 
providing those services, and limitations on public funding for those services created by the economic consequences of 
the pandemic. Therefore, all EMS services licensed in the State of Wisconsin were eligible to request funding in this 
grant process. 
 
In 2021, the AFD responded to 6,841 calls for service with a total of 5,180 that were for medical emergencies.  EMS 
response accounts for 76% of the fire department’s calls for service.  The Fire Department requested EMS Flex Grant 
funding to meet a variety of our medical incident response needs totaling $94,100.   The actual award was reduced to 
$51,270.   
 
Therefore, the Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting approval to accept the State of Wisconsin, Department of 
Health Services, EMS Flex Grant in the amount of $51,270. 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

September 22, 2022 

To: Finance Committee, Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Request to Accept FEMA’s Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for a Regional Radio Project 

 

 
The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting approval to accept a 2021 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) in 
the amount of $1,807,911.80. 
 
Since 2001, AFG has helped firefighters and other first responders obtain critically needed resources necessary for 
protecting the public and emergency personnel from fire and related hazards. The AFG supports training emergency 
personnel, enhancing efficiencies, and supporting community resilience. This grant opportunity places a high priority on 
equipment interoperability between neighboring departments.  The portable radios currently utilized in the region will 
no longer be manufactured.  This includes all associated equipment of that portable radio such as collar microphones, 
batteries, and parts. 
 
AFD is the host agency in the regional effort to replace portable radios.  The following Fire/EMS departments are 
included in the grant:  Little Chute, Town of Vandenbroek/Kaukauna, City of Kaukauna, Freedom, Kimberly, Ellington, 
Seymour City, Rural, and Rescue, Buchanan, Dale, Bear Creek, Combined Locks, Greenville, Appleton Airport, 
Hortonville/Hortonia, and Grand Chute.   
 
A total grant request of $4,315,312.30 was submitted to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  FEMA 
reduced the award to approximately 42% of the original ask, or $1,807,911.80.  We are in the process of assessing the 
impact the reduction will have on all agencies.  Based on the radio project estimated for the AFD of $532,643.15, the 
City of Appleton could expect to incur a capital expense of approximately $315,000.00 in fiscal year 2023. 
 
Local matching funds are determined by population.  The City of Appleton’s local match is 10%, while the remaining 
participating fire department will have a 5% match.  Due to the reduction in the original grant request, all agencies will 
exceed the local match requirements of the grant. 
 
Unfortunately, batteries, collar microphones, and associated portable equipment will no longer be made by Motorola 
for Factory Mutual (FM) certified portable radios leaving us with our only affordable choice, to purchase non-intrinsically 
safe portable radio components.  The purchase of non-intrinsically safe portable radios and components puts 
responders at risk in flammable/combustible environments.  The Appleton Fire Department initiated working with 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Outagamie County to approach this problem regionally, as many of the responding agencies in Outagamie County 
currently have FM certified portable radios and need to change over to Underwriter’s Laboratory (UL) certified portable 
radios.  The physical impact of such a change puts the regional responders at risk of being stuck with improper, unsafe 
equipment that is used for communication in hazardous and deadly environments.  The primary benefit of this project is 
the regional community will receive updated portable radios that maintain operability throughout the county and 
region.  Having an assigned radio dedicated to a particular riding position not only is a cost-effective way to immediately 
enhance operational safety, but it is also recommended by several industry standards as laid out by OSHA, NIOSH, NFPA, 
IAFCA, and IAFF.   

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC) 
  
FROM: Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development  
 
DATE: September 28, 2022 

RE: CDI Grant Application to WEDC – Merge Urban Development 

 
 
Staff is proposing to submit a Community Development Investment (CDI) grant application to 
Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation (WEDC) on behalf of and in collaboration with 
the owners of Merge Urban Development.  This grant is designed to support private investment 
in new construction projects.  The grant amount shall not exceed $250,000, and the funds will 
be used for redeveloping a parcel within the downtown area.  The project is known as 
Urbane115.  The CDI grant does require a 1:1 match, and the developer’s investment would 
count towards this match. 
 
Urbane115 will be a 5-story mixed-use building on a vacant site at 115 E. Washington Street.  
The project is located in the City of Appleton’s downtown, near College Avenue, City Center, 
and the Fox Cities Performing Arts Center.  The project includes 56 residential units, a mix of: 
furnished studios, studios, one-bedroom units, and two-bedroom units.  There will be 6,129 
square feet of leasable commercial space on the first floor, which is designed to be divisible.  
The total project cost is $12+ million.  The project site is located in Outagamie County – Census 
Tract 55087010100 – a federally-designated Qualified Opportunity Zone. 
 
In 2019, the City of Appleton began working with Merge Urban Development Group, the 
developer of Urbane115, to identify a project site for a mixed-use development that would aid in 
filling the City’s gap in housing and respond to the City’s Comprehensive & Downtown Plans.  
The development agreement was executed in August 2021, and the site was acquired shortly 
thereafter. 
 
If awarded the grant, an agreement with the developer will need to be approved by Common 
Council at a future meeting which will outline how the grant funds will be disbursed and other 
WEDC grant requirements that need to be followed by the City and the property owners. 
 
Please feel free to contact me at 920-832-6468 with any questions, or by email at 
karen.harkness@appleton.org.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The submission of the WEDC CDI grant applications BE APPROVED and the City accept the 
WEDC CDI grant funds should they be awarded. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

mailto:karen.harkness@appleton.org


Resolution No. 2022-07  
 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A WISCONSIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT GRANT PROGRAM 

ON BEHALF OF MERGE URBAN DEVELOPMENT GROUP; ACCEPT FUNDS 
 
INITIATED BY: CITY OF APPLETON COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation (WEDC) has grant funds available 
for projects to support local initiatives with a downtown emphasis by providing financial 
incentives for projects that are downtown community driven; and 
 
WHEREAS, local municipalities are an eligible applicant and can apply for said grant funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton is applying for said grant funds for the proposed mixed-use 
project at 115 East Washington Street to offset costs incurred by the private developer. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Appleton that the 
proper City officials are hereby authorized to submit a Community Development Investment 
grant application to Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation to obtain funds for said 
purpose. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if said grant funds are awarded, the proper City officials are 
hereby authorized and directed to accept said funds, pursuant to the terms of the grant 
application, and to execute any and all documents and assurances which may be required for 
purposes of same. 
 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _______________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Attest: Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC) 
  
FROM: Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development  
 
DATE: September 28, 2022 

RE: Request Approval of the First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
between the City of Appleton and MF Housing Partners, LLC in TIF #11 

 
 
The Appleton City Council approved a Development Agreement (DA) with MF Housing 
Partners, LLC (Developer) in November 2021.  Attached is the first amendment to this DA. 
These amendments are in response to the changing environments of interest rates and 
construction costs rising, supply chain challenges, and labor shortages. 
 
MF Housing Partners, LLC was awarded WHEDA tax credits for this project earlier this year. 
The Developer has added 5 units to the design for a total of 48 units.  The project would be on 
the following parcels, all zoned CBD Central Business District: 31-2-0441- 00, 31-2-0443-00, 
31-2-0437-00, and 31-2-0529-00.  Forty-three (43) of the forty-eight (48) units will be available 
to low-income persons with the rents restricted for an estimated thirty (30) years. 
 
This building will also include a community service facility and lobby. 
 
The Developer plans to break ground in Spring 2023, complete the project Spring 2024, and the 
project would be fully assessed, 1/1/2025. 
 
The Developer estimates the project will create up to an additional $3,059,600 in incremental 
value. 
 
The cost to develop the project is stated at $13.4 million. The Developer and Assessor estimate 
the assessed value of the project once completed to be approximately $3.9 million.  Developer 
requests a Pay-As-You-Go TIF support at 20% ($649,000).  Based on the analysis of current 
value of the property, projected value of the property, and review of proposed expenses, TIF 
District #11 would invest the lesser of twenty percent (20%) or $649,000 of the Tax Increment 
Value as of January 1, 2025, plus interest thereon to support the construction work for MF 
Housing Partners, LLC.  The interest rate on the contribution shall be the lesser of 1) the 
interest rate paid by the Developer to the primary lender for the Project, as evidenced by the 
note indicating the loan amount; or, 2) 5.75%. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
The First Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City of Appleton and MF 
Housing Partners, LLC BE APPROVED. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
dated as of the ___ day of ____________, 2022, by and among MF Housing Partners LLC, a 
Wisconsin limited liability company (“Developer”) and the City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation (the “City”). 

 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Development Agreement entered into by and 

between the City and Developer dated December 2, 2021 and recorded by the Outagamie County 
Register of Deeds on December 10, 2021 as Document No. 2256507, said Agreement is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
RECITALS 

Developer and the City acknowledge the following: 

A. Developer owns or will acquire the real property located at North Oneida Street, 
East Harris Street, and North Appleton Street, (Parcel Nos. 31-2-0441-00, 31-2-0443-00, 31-2-
0437-00, and 31-2-0529-00, Appleton, WI more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto (collectively the “Property”). 

B. The Property is located within the City in Tax Increment District #11 (the “District”) 
which was created in 2017 pursuant to Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats. along with a plan for the 
redevelopment of the District (the “District Plan”) that provides for, among other things, the 
financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

C. Subject to obtaining the financial assistance set forth herein, Developer has 
proposed improvements to the Property to create an approximately 48 rental apartments (the 
“Project”).  All references to the Project include the Property. 

D. The City has determined that the Project will spur economic development, expand 
the City’s tax base and create new jobs; that such financial assistance is a Project Cost under the 
Tax Incremental Law; that the amount of financial assistance provided pursuant to this Agreement 
is the amount necessary to induce development of the Project; and, that the Project will not 
proceed without the financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

E. Subject to obtaining financial assistance as set forth herein, Developer intends to 
undertake a redevelopment of the property that will increase the value of the Property and provide 
other tangible benefits to the surrounding neighborhoods and to the City as a whole, consistent 
with the District Plan.  The City finds that this redevelopment of the Property and the fulfillment, 
generally, of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the 
City and its residents and serves a public purpose in accordance with state and local law. 

F. The City, pursuant to Common Council Action dated on or about November ___, 
2022 approved this Agreement and authorized the execution of this Agreement by the proper City 
officers on the City’s behalf. 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 2 

G. The Developer has approved this Agreement and authorized the appropriate 
officers to execute this Agreement on the Developer’s behalf. 

H. The base value of the Property for purposes of this Agreement, including 
calculating increment generated by the Project, is $232,200. The Developer estimates the project 
will create up to an additional $3,059,600 in incremental value. 

I. All terms that are capitalized but not defined in this Agreement and that are defined 
under the Tax Increment Law shall have the definitions assigned to such terms by the Tax 
Increment Law. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the promises and undertakings 
set forth herein, the parties mutually agree and covenant as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE DEVELOPER 

1.1 Developer’s Project shall include improvements to, and development of, the 
Property as set forth in Exhibit B that will result in an increase in the Property’s assessed value.  
All aspects of the Project shall be in accordance with all applicable City zoning and building codes, 
ordinances and regulations. 

1.2 Project Costs shall include, without limitation, costs incurred after approval of this 
agreement for the construction of improvements (including infrastructure improvements), 
environmental remediation costs, demolition, interior remodeling and development of the project.  

1.3 Developer warrants and represents to the City that but for the assistance provided 
by the City under Article II, herein, Developer would not be able to proceed with the Project. 

1.4 Developer and City acknowledge that several of the specific undertakings of the 
parties may require approvals from directors, boards or the City Council as applicable.  The 
parties' agreements are conditioned upon the obtaining of all such approvals in the manner 
required by law.  The parties cannot assure that all such approvals will be obtained; however, 
they agree to use their best good faith efforts to obtain them on a timely basis. 

ARTICLE II 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE CITY 

2.1 The City shall appropriate sufficient funds for the performance of the City’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

2.2 City shall cooperate with Developer throughout the Project and shall promptly 
review and/or process all submissions and applications in accordance with applicable City 
ordinances. 

2.3 Subject to all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement and 
applicable provisions of law, and as an inducement by the City to Developer to carry out the 
Project, upon completion of the Project (which shall be defined as issuance of occupancy permits 
for all units/floors of the Project (hereafter “completion”)) the City will provide payments to 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 3 

Developer solely from future Tax Increments (derived from both real and personal property) to 
assist with Developer’s Project Costs. The City’s total payment of Tax Increment Revenue to the 
Developer shall not exceed the lesser of i) $649,000 or ii) twenty percent (20%) of the Tax 
Increment Value as of January 1, 2025, plus interest thereon (the “Contribution”). The Contribution 
will be paid to Developer as follows: 

2.3.1 As the sole source for payment of the Contribution, the City agrees to pay 
the Developer an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the Tax Increment Revenue 
attributable to, and actually received from, the Property during the calendar year. 

2.3.2 The first payment shall be made on August 15 of the year immediately after 
the Project’s completion. This first payment shall be based on the Property’s assessed 
value on January 1 of the year of completion.  Thereafter payments under this Agreement 
shall be due in annual installments, on August 15, for a period of time described in Sec. 
4.2 

2.3.3 Interest on the Contribution shall begin to accrue upon completion of the 
Project.  The interest rate on the Contribution shall be the lesser of 1) the interest rate paid 
by the Developer to the primary lender for the Project, as evidenced by the note indicating 
the loan amount; or, 2) 5.75%. 

2.3.4 The Contribution shall be a special and limited obligation of the City and 
not a general obligation.  Payments shall first apply to accrued interest and then to the 
principal balance of the Contribution.  Unpaid interest in any year shall be added to the 
principal balance of the Contribution and accrue interest.  The City may prepay the 
Contribution, in its sole discretion, at any time, with no prepayment penalty. 

2.4 This Agreement fully evidences the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  No 
separate instrument will be prepared to evidence the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  
The Contribution shall not be included in the computation of the City’s statutory debt limitation 
because the Contribution is limited and conditional and no taxes will be levied or pledged for its 
payment.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to change the nature of the City’s obligation 
from a limited and conditional obligation to a general obligation. 

2.5 The City covenants to Developer that until the Contribution plus interest thereon 
has been paid in full, the City shall not close the District prior to its statutory expiration date. 

2.6 The City shall, upon Developer’s request, provide to Developer an accounting of 
the status of the District including, but not limited to, the outstanding principal balance of the 
Contribution and annual Tax Increments received from the District. 

2.7 Developer hereby acknowledges that, as a result of the special and limited nature 
of the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution, Developer’s recovery of the full amount of the 
Contribution depends on factors including, but not limited to, future mill rates, changes in the 
assessed value of the Property, the failure of the Property to generate the Tax Increments at the 
rate expected by Developer, reduction in Tax Increments caused by revenue-sharing, changes in 
the Tax Increment Law, and other factors beyond the City’s and/or Developer’s control. 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 4 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT OF TAXES 

3.1 As long as the District is in existence, the Property and all buildings and 
improvements thereon shall be owned and taxable for real estate tax and special assessment 
purposes.  The City may waive any or all of the restrictions upon execution of a payment in lieu 
of taxes (PILOT) agreement on a form acceptable to the City. 

3.2 Throughout the duration of this agreement, all ad valorem property taxes properly 
assessed against the Property will be paid timely and in full. 

3.3 In the event that any property owned by Developer within the District becomes 
exempt from ad valorem property taxes during the life of the District, then for the remaining life of 
the District, the Developer will make (or cause to be made) annual payments in lieu of taxes in 
amounts equal to what the ad valorem property taxes would have been for such other property 
had it not been exempt.  If the Developer conveys the Property within the District to any party 
(related or unrelated), the terms of such sale shall impose as a covenant upon all successor 
owners of the property the foregoing obligation for payments in lieu of taxes during the life of the 
District.  The City shall be a beneficiary of such covenant and entitled to enforce same against 
the successor owners. 

ARTICLE IV 
CONDITIONS TO PAYMENT; TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

4.1 The City shall have no obligation to pay any portion of the Contribution to 
Developer unless and until all of the following conditions shall have been met: 

4.1.1 The Project’s completion on or before December 31, 2025, subject to 
extension for Force Majeure or upon mutual written agreement of the City and Developer. 

4.1.2 The Property’s assessed value is no less than $3,900,000 on or before 
January 1, 2025. 

4.2 This Agreement, and the City’s obligation to make, or continue, any payments of 
the Contribution, shall terminate when any of the following shall have occurred: 

4.2.1 The conditions in Section 4.1 are not met.  

4.2.2 The Contribution is paid in full or August 15, 2044, whichever occurs first.  

ARTICLE V 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

5.1 No member, officer or employee of the City, during his/her tenure or for one year 
thereafter, will have or shall have had any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or any 
proceeds thereof. 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 5 

ARTICLE VI 
WRITTEN NOTICES 

6.1 Any written notice required under this Agreement shall be sent to the following 
individuals: 

FOR THE CITY: 
 
City of Appleton 
Community and Economic Development Department 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911-4799 
Attention:  Director 
 
With a copy to: 
 
City of Appleton 
City Attorney’s Office 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911-4799 
Attn:  City Attorney 
 
FOR DEVELOPER: 
 
MF Housing Partners LLC 
100 West Lawrence Drive, Suite 214 
Appleton, WI 54911 
Attn: Tom Klister 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ASSIGNMENT 

7.1 No party to this Agreement may assign any of its interest or obligations hereunder 
without first obtaining the written consent of the other party. 

ARTICLE VIII 
NO PARTNERSHIP OR VENTURE 

8.1 Developer and its contractors or subcontractors shall be solely responsible for the 
completion of the Project.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or effect any 
partnership, venture or relationship between the City and Developer or any contractor or 
subcontractor employed by Developer in the construction of the Project. 

ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Under no circumstances shall any officer, official, director, member, manager, 
commissioner, agent, or employee of City or Developer have any personal liability arising out of 
this Agreement, and no party shall seek or claim any such personal liability. 

9.2 The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern this Agreement. 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 6 

9.3 This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts with the same effect 
as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. 

9.4 No modification, alteration, or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding upon 
any party until such modification, alteration, or amendment is reduced to writing and executed by 
all parties to this Agreement. 

9.5 Any captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 
way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

9.6 If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be inoperative or 
unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction because it conflicts with any 
other provision or provisions of this Agreement or any constitution or statute or rule of public 
policy, or for any other reason, then such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the 
provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of 
rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable 
to any extent whatever.  To the maximum extent possible, this Agreement shall be construed in 
a manner consistent with the powers of the City, including but not limited to, the City's powers 
under the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance Law and the Tax Increment Law, to achieve its 
intended purpose.  Reference is made to Section 66.1333(17) of the Wisconsin Statutes and 
Chapter 105, Laws of 1975 § 4, which provide that the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance 
Law and the Tax Increment Law should be construed liberally to effectuate their purposes. 

 

 

[Signatures on following pages] 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF APPLETON: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came before me this ____ day of _________________, 2022, Jacob A. 
Woodford, Mayor and Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk, of the City of Appleton respectively, to me known 
to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the 
capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 

 
   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires:    

 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY FOR  
OBLIGATIONS INCURRED PURSUANT TO  
THIS AGREEMENT: 
 
 
   
Jeri A. Ohman, Finance Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
   
Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
Updated: September 23, 2022 (clean ‐ amendment) 
By:  Christopher R. Behrens 
City Law A21‐0718 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 8 

 
DEVELOPER: 
 
MF HOUSING PARTNERS LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
 Tom Klister, a member 
 
 
By:   
 Marissa Downs, a member 
 
 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came, before me this ____ day of ___________________, 2022, Tom Klister 
and Marissa Downs, each a member of the LLC, to me known to be the persons who executed 
the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the purposes therein 
intended. 

   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires:    

 
 

  



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 9 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

A. Legal Description of Property 
 
 
B. Proposed Improvements 

 

  



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 10 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

To be updated by Developer 

 
 



_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  First Amendment to Development Agreement 
  Page | 11 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
 






	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 9-21-22
	0002_1_Indigenous Peoples' Day Proclamation
	0002_2_Coming Out Day Proclamation
	0002_3_White Cane Awareness Day Proclamation
	0002_4_Fire Prevention Week Proclamation
	0002_5_Domestic Violence Awareness Month
	0002_6_Mental Health Day Proclamation
	0004_1_Driveway X
	0004_2_Driveway Extension
	0004_3_9-21 Van Grinsven Letter Photos re driveway req
	0004_4_9-21 Taggart letter re Van Grinsven driveway req
	0005_1_2022-2027 College Ave SIdewalk Crosswalk Snow Services
	0006_1_Handicap parking-100 block Locust St
	0007_1_Pick N Save 8187
	0008_1_Super Bowl
	0009_1_Checkpoint Gaming SL
	0010_1_11-R-22 Resolution in Support of Election Officials
	0011_1_09-22-22_AFG_County_Radio_Grant
	0011_2_EMW-2021-FG-01241 - Regional Radio Grant - Budget Amendment - 09.22.2022
	0012_1_09-22-22_EMS_Flex_Grant_Memo
	0012_2_State of Wisconsin Health Services - EMS Flex Grant - Budget Amendment - 09.22.2022
	0013_1_StaffReport_F Street Phase III_CrossingPlatBoundary_For09-28-22
	20220812 CSM CSM SH1 (1)
	20220812 CSM CSM SH2 (1)
	20220812 CSM CSM SH3 (1)
	20220812 CSM CSM SH4 (1)
	20220812 CSM CSM SH5 (1)
	20220812 CSM CSM SH6 (1)

	0014_1_2022 Lake Station Gate Replacement Project
	0015_1_2022 Library Bids - Rejected
	0016_1_Unit U-21 Change Order No. 4
	0017_1_09-22-22_EMS_Flex_Grant_Memo
	0018_1_09-22-22_AFG_County_Radio_Grant
	0019_1_WEDC_CDI Grant_Urbane 115 LLC_Memo to CEDC 9-28-22
	0019_2_Resolution 2022-07 WEDC_CDI Grant_Urbane 115 LLC
	0020_1_Rise Apts DA 1st Amendment Memo to CEDC 9-28-22
	0020_2_0718 - Rise Apartments - First Amendment to Dev Agrm - 09-23-2022 (clean)
	0021_1_Award Recommendation Optibus



